
LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Hollingsworth Board Room, 1212 George Jenkins Blvd, Lakeland, FL 33815 
Wednesday, March 9th, 2022, at 8:30 a.m. 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 

Call to Order           Action Required 

 

1. Approval of the February LAMTD Meeting  Approval 

 

2. Public Comments         None 

 

3. Employee Recognition / Aaron Dunn, Director of Revenue  None 

 

4. Progress update for TDP / Julia Davis, Polk TPO  None 

 

5. Audit Presentation / Daniel Anderson, CPA, Mauldin & Jenkins  Approval  

 

6. Finance / Kelly Bennington, CPA, Chief Financial Officer   

a. LAMTD Financials        None 

b. PCTS Financials        None 

c. TD Financials        None 

d. NE Polk County Transit Service Contract Modification   Approval 

e. 2022 State Corridor Projects Public Transportation Grant Agreement Approval 

f. Asset Disposal        Approval 

 

7. Executive Director Report / Tom Phillips 

a. Agency Update(s)  None 

               

8.  Executive Informational Summary / Tom Phillips      

 a.    February Calendar       None 

      b.    Ridership and UAP Update                                                 None   

                      

9. Other Business  TBD        

                                                                            

Adjournment 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MAR 9, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM #1 

 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Item: Approval of the LAMTD Meeting Minutes for February 

 

Presenter: James Phillips 

 

Policy Analysis: TA 6 Increase internal communication through systemic 

processes. 

  

Recommended  

Action: Board approval of the LAMTD Meeting Minutes from 

February. 

    

 

Attachments: February 9, 2022 LAMTD Meeting Minutes 

  

 

 

  

   

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 9th, 2022 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

  

 

 

 

Directors: 
Polk County Commissioner Martha Santiago 
Polk County Commissioner George Lindsey III 
City of Lakeland Commissioner Sara McCarley 
City of Lakeland Mayor Bill Mutz 

 
Executive Director: Tom Phillips  
Executive Assistant: James Phillips  
 
 
 

Call to Order 
8:30am By Commissioner McCarley 

 
 
Agenda Item #1 – Approval of the Minutes 

a.  Board approval of the Jan 2022 LAMTD Meeting Minutes 

 

[Attachments available] 
 

 
“Approval of meeting minutes for the Jan 2022 LAMTD Meeting” 
1st Bill Mutz/ 2nd Martha Santiago 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY   

Agenda Item #2 – Public Comments  
None 
 

Agenda Item #3 – Progress update for TDP / Julia Davis, Polk TPO 
 
Julia Davis came to speak to the upcoming engagement workshops with the public and businesses and 
how their feedback will assist with the TDP. 
 
 
Agenda Item #4 – Finance 

 

a. LAMTD Financials 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date December 31, 2021 

FY 2021-2022 

Year to Date December 31, 2021 

Description YTD of FY 
 Budget 

YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 
Expended 

Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 25% $2,991,945 $4,997,517 167% $11.98 Million 

Expenses YTD 25% $2,991,945 $2,420,522 81% $11.98 Million 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 9th, 2022 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through December 31, 2021, totaled $4,997,517 or 167% of the YTD 
budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect $78,221 or 52% of YTD budgeted revenues through December 31, 2021, due 
to decline in Ridership and COVID-19. The Ridership is reflecting increase over the last quarter. 
 

• Contract revenues (UAP) totaled $34,862 over the YTD budgeted revenues for UAP (Universal Access 
Passes).  

 

• Other Contract Revenue Budget totaled $230,000 for the Atlantic Capital LLC agreement $.1 million, 
Winter Haven Services $92,730 and Bartow Services $37,310 for shared services. Actual totaled 
$4,500. 
 

• Ad Valorem taxes totaled $4.7 million. The total budgeted revenues are $5.6 million. Only 95% of the 
taxes are budgeted by State Law. 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments 
are as follows: 

➢ 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
➢ 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
➢ 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
➢ 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year. The District normally receives 90% of property 
taxes by       May of each year. 
 

• Interest Income on Investment at the LGIP totaled $1,946 under budget. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants $1.52 million is being billed quarterly.  These grants are on a cash basis 
which means the services must be provided before we receive grant assistance.  
 

• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.93 million.  This grant is also on a cash 
basis which means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  
Since most of the grant funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant 
reimbursement is received at the end of the fiscal year after State funds is recognized.  
 

• Advertising income reflects $27,720 in line with the budget and paid quarterly. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is in line with budget $137,850. 
 

• Misc. revenue reflects $2,208 which is under budget. 
 

• Gain on disposal of assets totaled $5,600.  
 

• The other revenues are showing a lag due to timing and being on a cash basis. 
 

 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 9th, 2022 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

Monthly Financial Report 
Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 

For the Year-to-date December 31, 2021 
FY 2021-2022 

 
EXPENSES: 
The total expenses year-to-date through December 31, 2021, totaled $2.4 million or 81% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits represent 65% of the FY 2021-2022 budget.  As of December 31, 2021, these 
expenses totaled $1.532 million or 20% under budget of $1.934 million a favorable variance.  

 

• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $123,785 of the YTD budget which is 
approximately breakeven with the budget. 

 

• Other services expenses totaled $8,718 of the YTD budget, under budget for temporary services.  
 

• Fuel expenses totaled $132,795 YTD which is approximately breakeven with the budget. 
 

• Materials and supplies totaled $176,234 which is approximately breakeven with the budget. 
 

• Dues and subscriptions totaled $7,350 which is under budget while office supplies of $24,329 is slightly 
over budget. 
 

• Property appraiser/Tax Collector Commission are quarterly advance payments causing expenses to 
appear to be over budget. 
 

• CRA payments are under budget since payments are annually.  
 

• Fixed and variable cost has contributed to some budget variances since it is a combination of a 
onetime cost and reoccurring costs. 
 

• The CRA Budget for Tax Year 2021 totaling $285,000 is not paid. 
 

 
Other remaining expenses are under the YTD budget through December 31, 2021. 
 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through December 31st the financials reflect a 
favorable actual variance of $2.6 million with 25% of the fiscal year due to the influx of ad valorem income. 

 
 

 
 

 STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 9/30/20 9/30/19 9/30/18 9/30/17 9/30/16 

1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)   8.48% 10.13% 13.00% 10.04% 13.95% 

2.  Cost per revenue hour                               $117.66 $116.62 $108.42 $106.94 $104.76 

3.  Revenue Hours                                           146,700 145,405 146,597 142,189 139,228 

4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                            $744,587 $949,887 $1,082,166 $834,971 $757,485 

5.  Ridership                                                   855,409 1,294,771 1,252,600 1,346,211 1,393,620 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 9th, 2022 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
b. PCTS Financials 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 

     Polk County Transit Contract 

              Month of December 31, 2021 

                      Year to Date Report 

              Percent of FY Reported (25%) 

 

   

Revenues  

➢ The revenues totaled $3.4 million over 100% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The FTA grants drawdown shows no activity. 

➢ Fare Revenues totaled $10,922 or 37% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The Polk County City Contributions reflects a payment of $362,830 in the FY 

Budget.  

➢ The County funding reflects payments of $3.01 million for the budgeted grants 

match. 

➢ The FDOT Grants drawdown reflects no activity. 

➢ Rural Grants Revenues reflects no activity. 

 

Expenses 

➢ Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 

➢ Total expenses for the period totaled $1.77 million or 79% of the year-to-date 

budget.  

➢ Salaries and wages totaled $883,753 or 78% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ Operating expenses totaled $528,766 or 79% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ The contract services are for contractual cost for the several routes with the 

Contractor Transitions Commute Solutions with expenses YTD totaling $356,234 

or 81% and is under budget. 

 
 

c. TD Financials  
 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 

                                  The Transportation Disadvantaged Program 

                 Month of December 31, 2021 

                      Year to Date Report 

             Percent of FY Reported (50%) 

State FY July 1, 2021, thru June 30, 2022 

   

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 9th, 2022 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

    

Revenues  

➢ The revenues totaled $513,133 or 78% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The TD Trust Fund Grant drawdown reflects $469,600 or 79% of the grant. 

➢ Contract Revenues and other revenues totaled $244. 

➢ The County funding for the match totaled $43,289 or 66%. 

 

Expenses 

➢ Operating expenses consists of labor cost, operating expenses and contract 

expenses. 

➢ Total expenses for the period totaled $514,214 or 78% of the year-to-date budget.  

➢ Salaries, wages and benefits totaled $415,933 or 84% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ Operating expenses totaled $98,281 or 60% of the YTD Budget. 

 

Operating Results 

➢ Actual Revenues are under expenses by ($1,082). 
 

d. Asset Disposal 
The District is proposing the disposal of these items based on the depreciation schedule as defined by 
the Federal Transit Administration Circular 5010.1E. 
The vehicles shall be disposed of through a competitive bid process. Item that cannot be sold will be 
reassessed and disposed of as scrap, in accordance with the District’s Asset Disposal Policies. 

 
 
 

“Approve the disposal of three (3) rolling stock, fixed route, and/or paratransit buses 
that have surpassed their useful life in years of service and mileage, generating costly 
repairs or limited usage.”  
1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Martha Santiago 
 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 9th, 2022 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

Agenda Item #5– Legal 
a. Payment Increase for Fort Meade 
Outside the standard Fair Share agreement to Fort Meade, they have asked for increased service and 

increased in their payment to the district. 
“Approve the funding increase to the fair share agreement”  
1st Bill Mutz/ 2nd George Lindsey 
 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
b. Gibson Oaks Property, Resolution 22-06 
An addition of land to the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District. 
 

“Approve the addition of land to the District”  
1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Martha Santiago 
 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
a. Lakeland Regional Health Property, Resolution 22-07 
An addition of land to the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District. 
 

“Approve the addition of land to the District”  
1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Martha Santiago 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

b. VA Funding Agreement 
An update the developer sent over the check to purchase the new buses and settle the impact fee 

credits. 
 
Agenda Item #6 – Marketing / Erin Killebrew, Director of External Affairs 

a. Squeeze Commercial 
To increase awareness to the Squeeze and keep the public up to date on service changes, Marketing 
has developed this TV spot for public use. 
 

Agenda Item #7 – Facilities and Maintenance / Jay Steinbauer, Director of Fleet Maintenance and Facilities 
a. Update of East County Facility 

The property located on Motor Pool Rd is currently owned by the City of Winter Haven and is currently 
under a long-term lease agreement with the Polk County Board of County Commissioners. The land 
was previously used by Polk County Transit as a storage yard for vehicles.  The land is partially paved 
and has a small Electric Service connection, but no other amenities (water, sanitary sewage, or 
communications). The District is being granted use of the land of which we would like to use for light 
vehicle maintenance. 
 
Phase One: The District’s goal would be to perform light maintenance activities at motor pool road 
location instead of the Winter Haven terminal. Installing a temporary office and restroom facility for 
staff use. Upgrade two gate operators and add barbed wire to fencing for increased security.  
                              
 The estimated cost is as follows: 
                               Mobile office with restroom $2,000 per month 
                               Barbed wire fencing $2,000 
                               Upgrade electrical Panel $12,000 
                               Replace two gate operators $14,000 
                               Total cost year one not to exceed $60,000 
 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 9th, 2022 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

As per the lease agreement, all plans for site improvements require approval by the City of Winter 
Haven prior to any property modifications. 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Agenda Item #8 – Safety, Security, and Training 
a. Approval of the 2022 Public Transit Agency Safety Plan (PTASP) 
Annually the agency needs to recertify the PTASP in order to stay in compliance with Federal and State 
regulations. 
 
[Attachment available] 
 

“Approve the PTASP for the 2022 year”  
1st Martha Santiago/ 2nd George Lindsey 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 
Agenda Item #9 – Operations 

a. Squeeze Inclement Weather Procedure 
Since inception, the operations of the Squeeze has undergone revisions to get where it is now. Recently a 
provision to handle inclement weather was added. 
 
[Attachment available] 
 

“Approve the agency to publish the procedures for the Squeeze on our website”
  
1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Bill Mutz 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Citrus Connection, Hollingsworth Meeting Room 1212 
George Jenkins Blvd., Lakeland, Fl. 33815 
Wednesday, Feb 9th, 2022 at 8:30 a.m. 

 

 
Agenda Item #10 – Executive Director Report 

a. Agency Updates 
- Engagement survey starts Feb 11 with Dr. Ross coming back 
- COVID impacts to employment hours hit the agency hard 
- Fruitful discussions with the City of Lakeland’s CRA staff 

 
Agenda Item #11 – Executive Director Informational Summary 
 
a. January Calendar 

 
[Attachment Available] 
 

b. Ridership and UAP Update 
 

 [Attachment Available] 
 
Agenda Item #11 – Other Business 
Commissioner Lindsey  

- Would wish to see the LAMTD Taxing District fully exempted from the payment increments to the 
Lakeland CRA. 
“Approve LAMTD staff to seek the exemption from the city of Lakeland”  
1st George Lindsey/ 2nd Bill Mutz 
 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 
 

 
 
Adjournment at 9:44 a.m. 
 

 
 
Approved this 9th day of March 2022. 

 
 
 
 
 

 
  

Chair – Lakeland City Commissioner Sara Roberts McCarley Minutes Recorder – James Phillips 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MAR 9, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM #2 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Item: Public Comments 

 

 

Presenter: TBD 

 

 

Recommended  

Action: TBD 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MAR 9, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM #3 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Item: Employee Recognition 

 

 

Presenter: Aaron Dunn, Director of Revenue Services 

 

 

Recommended  

Action: None 

 

Summary: The Citrus Connection would like to take the time to recognize some 

employees for going above and beyond and for consistently meeting 

the community’s needs in emergency situations. 

 

   

 Robert Wilson – Provides a clear example of not only how great 

our supervisors are but is an example of leadership within this 

agency.  

 

 Kevin Ivon – Recognized one of the passengers on the bus he was 

training on as a missing person and called in the details to help law 

enforcement interdict and reconnect the children with their families 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MAR 9, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM #4 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Item: Progress update for TDP 

 

 

Presenter: Julia Davis, Polk TPO 

 

 

Recommended  

Action: None 

 

Summary: The Citrus Connection is in the middle of its major revision to the 

Transportation Development Plan. With a partnership with the Polk 

TPO, they are here to provide a progress update on the status of the 

update. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MAR 9, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM #5 

 

 

 

 

 
Agenda Item: Audit Presentation 

 

 

Presenter: Daniel Anderson, CPA, Mauldin & Jenkins 

 

 

Recommended  

Action: Staff recommendation is to accept the audit as presented 

 

Summary: Staff from Mauldin & Jenkins have completed the annual audit 

report for LAMTD financials for FY20-21 and are here to present 

those results. 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM #6a 
 

 

Agenda Item: January 31, 2022, LAMTD Monthly Financial Statement 

 FY 2021-22  

 

Presenter: Kelly Bennington, CFO 

 

Recommended   

Action: None 

 

Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 

District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 

actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 

statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 

 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management, and the public to 

provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 

the budget. 

 

Attachments: See Attachments 

 

Policy Analysis: TA 6  Increase internal communication through systemic 

processes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 
Monthly Financial Report 

Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 
For the Year-to-date January 31, 2022 

FY 2021-2022 

Year to Date January 31, 2022 

Description YTD of FY 
 Budget 

YTD Budget $ YTD Actual $ YTD of FY 
Expended 

Annual      
Budget 

Revenue YTD 33% $3,989,260 $5,700,058 143% $11.98 Million 

Expenses YTD 33% $3,989,260 $3,259,759 82% $11.98 Million 

 
REVENUES: 
 
The total revenues realized year-to-date through January 31, 2022, totaled $5,700,058 or 143% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Farebox revenues reflect $102,198 or an unfavorable 48% of YTD budgeted revenues through January 31, 2022, 
due to the decline in Ridership related to driver shortages and COVID-19. 
 

• Contract revenues (UAP) totaled $44,983 or 100% of YTD budgeted revenues for UAP (Universal Access Passes).  
 

• Other Contract Revenue Budget totaled $230,000 for the Atlantic Capital LLC agreement $0.1 million, Winter 
Haven Services $92,730 and Bartow Services $37,310 for shared services. Actual totaled $6,000. 
 

• Ad Valorem taxes totaled $5.2 million or 93%. The total budgeted revenues are $5.6 million. Only 95% of the 
taxes are budgeted by State Law. 
 
Property taxes become due and payable on November 1st, each year.  Discounts for early payments are as 
follows: 

➢ 4% discount is allowed if paid by November 
➢ 3% discount is allowed if paid by December 
➢ 2% discount is allowed if paid by January 
➢ 1% discount is allowed if paid by February 

 
 Taxes become delinquent on April 1st of each year. The District normally receives 90% of property taxes by      
 May of each year. 
 

• Interest Income on Investment at the LGIP totaled $3,174 which is under budget. 
 

• Florida DOT operating grants $1.52 million is being billed quarterly.  These grants are on a cash basis which 
means the services must be provided before we receive grant assistance.  
 

• FTA Section 5307 operating and capital grants budgeted at $2.93 million.  This grant is also on a cash basis which 
means that the District must expend the funds before we seek grant reimbursement.  Since most of the grant 
funding is used for operations and preventative maintenance the grant reimbursement is received at the end of 
the fiscal year after State funds is recognized.  
 

• Advertising income reflects $58,430 which is in line with the budget and paid quarterly. 
 

• The Support cost reimbursement revenue is in line with budget $183,800. 
 

• Miscellaneous revenue reflects $2,251 which is under budget. Gain on disposal of assets totaled $5,850.  
 

• Other revenues are within budget. 
 

 
 



 
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 
Operating Budget. Budget to Actual 

For the Year-to-date January 31, 2022 
FY 2021-2022 

 
EXPENSES: 
 
The total expenses year-to-date through January 31, 2022, totaled $3.3 million or 82% of the YTD budget. 
 

• Salaries and benefits represent 65% of the FY 2021-2022 budget.  As of January 31, 2022, these expenses totaled 
$2.08 million or 19% under budget of $2.58 million a favorable variance.  

 

• Professional and Technical Services expenses totaled $205,374 of the YTD budget which is 22% over budget. 
 

• Other services expenses totaled $10,809 of the YTD budget, 68% under budget for temporary services.  
 

• Fuel expenses totaled $172,407 YTD which is 5% under budget. 
 

• Materials and supplies totaled $222,919, 9% under budget. 
 

• Dues and subscriptions totaled $8,979 and office supplies of $27,077 are both under budget. 
 

• Property appraiser/Tax Collector Commission are quarterly advance payments causing expenses to appear to be 
over budget. 
 

• CRA payments are under budget since payments are annually.  
 

• Capital expenditures/debt service of $100,912 pertains to the lease purchase of buses and is within budget. 
 

• Fixed and variable costs have contributed to some budget variances since it is a combination of a onetime costs 
and reoccurring costs with an overall favorable variance as of January 31, 2022. 
 

 

CHANGE IN FINANCIAL CONDITION 

Based on the year-to-date budget-to-actual variances through January 31st the financials reflect a favorable actual 
variance of $2.4 million with 33% of the fiscal year completed predominantly due to the influx of ad valorem income. 

 
 

 
 

 STATISTICAL TRENDS LAST FIVE YEARS AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

 9/30/20 9/30/19 9/30/18 9/30/17 9/30/16 

1.  Farebox Recovery Ratio (All modes)   8.48% 10.13% 13.00% 10.04% 13.95% 

2.  Cost per revenue hour                               $117.66 $116.62 $108.42 $106.94 $104.76 

3.  Revenue Hours                                           146,700 145,405 146,597 142,189 139,228 

4.  Fuel Cost ($)                                            $744,587 $949,887 $1,082,166 $834,971 $757,485 

5.  Ridership                                                   855,409 1,294,771 1,252,600 1,346,211 1,393,620 

 





LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM #6b 
 

Agenda Item: January 31, 2022, Financials for Polk County Transit Services 

Contract – FY 2021-22 

 

Presenter: Kelly Bennington, CFO 

  

Recommended  

Action: None  

   

Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 

district’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 

actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 

statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 

 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management, and the public to 

provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 

the budget. 

 

Attachments: See Attachments 

 

Policy Analysis: TA 6 Increase internal communication through systemic 

processes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM #6b 
 

 

 

 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 

     Polk County Transit Contract 

              Month of January 31, 2022 

                      Year to Date Report 

              Percent of FY Reported (33%) 

 

   

Revenues  

➢ The revenues totaled $3.4 million over 100% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The FTA grants drawdown shows no activity. 

➢ Fare Revenues totaled $13,898 or 36% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The Polk County City Contributions reflects a payment of $362,830 in the FY 

Budget.  

➢ The County funding reflects payments of $3.03 million for the budgeted 

grants match. 

➢ The FDOT Grants drawdown reflects no activity. 

➢ Rural Grants Revenues reflects no activity. 

 

Expenses 

➢ Operating expenses consists of labor costs, operating expenses, and contract 

expenses. 

➢ Total expenses for the period totaled $2.4 million or 81% of the year-to-date 

budget.  

➢ Salaries and wages totaled $1.2 million or 76% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ Operating expenses totaled $771,319 or 87% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ The contract services are for contractual cost for the several routes with the 

Contractor Transitions Commute Solutions with expenses YTD totaling 

$481,945 or 83% and is under budget. 

 



Annual 
Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

Percent 
Expended

Revenues 
County Match 3,029,262$             1,009,754$         3,029,262$         300%
Other Contract Revenue - County         -$                            -$                        -$                       #DIV/0!
City Contribution 533,611$                177,870$            362,827$            204%
County Contribution - PCTS -$                            -$                        -$                       #DIV/0!
Other Revenue Transfer Cares Funding -$                            -$                        -$                       #DIV/0!

Fares 117,250$                39,083$              13,898$              36%

FDOT Block Grants:
GOV71/G1481 - WHAT/ADA 625,820$                208,607$            -$                       0%
RURAL 1,492,450$             497,483$            -$                       0%
SUNRAIL 249,740$                83,247$              -$                       0%

FTA
FTA 5307 Grant 2,924,537$             974,846$            -$                   0%

 
Capital Contributions - County -$                            -$                        -$                   0%

Total 8,972,670$             2,990,890$         3,405,987$         114%

Annual 
Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual

Percent 
Expended

Labor 4,552,010$             1,517,337$         1,159,801$         76%

Contract 1,750,000$             583,333$            481,945$            83%

Operating 2,670,660$             890,220$            771,319$            87%

Capital - Loughman Route -$                            -$                        -$                       0%

Total 8,972,670$             2,990,890$         2,413,065$         81%

Expenses

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District
Financial Statement

Polk County Contract
Month of January 2022

Revenue



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM #6c 
 

Agenda Item: January 31, 2022, Financials for The Transportation 

Disadvantaged Program– FY 2021-22 

 

Presenter: Kelly Bennington, CFO 

 

Recommended  

Action: None   

 

Summary: The Interim Financial Statement covers a period of less than 

one year. The report is used to convey the performance of the 

District’s financial position and budget comparisons – budget to 

actual on a year-to-date basis. Unlike annual financial 

statements, Interim Statements do not have to be audited. 

 

 Interim financial statements increase communication between 

the District Board of Directors, management and the public to 

provide up-to-date financial information and compliance with 

the budget. 

 

 The Transportation Disadvantaged Program fiscal year starting 

July 1, 2021 and ends June 30, 2022. The funding is 90% State 

for the Transportation Disadvantaged Trust Fund and 10% 

matching funds funded by Polk County. There are some other 

third-party revenues for contract services. 

 

Attachments: See Attachments 

 

Policy Analysis: TA 6 Increase internal communication through systemic 

processes. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM #6c 
 

 

 

 

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

Monthly Financial Report 

                                  The Transportation Disadvantaged Program 

                 Month of January 31, 2022 

                      Year to Date Report 

             Percent of FY Reported (58%) 

State FY July 1, 2021, thru June 30, 2022 

   

 

    

Revenues  

➢ The revenues totaled $571,739 or 75% of the year-to-date budget. 

➢ The TD Trust Fund Grant drawdown reflects $522,270 or 76% of the grant. 

➢ Contract Revenues and other revenues totaled $328. 

➢ The County funding for the match totaled $49,141 or 64%. 

 

Expenses 

➢ Operating expenses consists of labor costs, operating expenses, and contract 

expenses. 

➢ Total expenses for the period totaled $665,991 or 87% of the year-to-date 

budget.  

➢ Salaries, wages, and benefits totaled $494,333 or 86% of the YTD Budget. 

➢ Operating expenses totaled $171,659 or 90% of the YTD Budget. 

 

Operating Results 

➢ Actual Revenues are less than expenses by ($94,252). Due to a shortage of 

drivers, routes have been closed which affects ridership volumes and the 

ability to draw down revenues. Also due to the shortage of drivers, TD drivers 

are being used on other routes. We are currently analyzing expenses that 

should potentially be reallocated from TD to LAMTD/PCTS. 

 

 



Annual Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual Total YTD
Revenues 
County Match 10% 131,526$                                 76,724$             49,141$          64%
Contract Revenue 151$                                        88$                    328$               
Adult Day Care -$                       -$                    
FDOT Grants: -$                       

CTD Grant -Operating 1,183,733$                              690,511$           522,270$        76%
Total 1,315,410$                              767,323$           571,739$        75%

Annual Budget YTD Budget YTD Actual Total YTD
Labor 990,070$                                 577,541$           $494,333 86%

-$                   
Operating 325,340$                                 189,782$           171,659$        90%

Total 1,315,410$                              767,323$           $665,991 87%

Lakeland Area Mass Transit District
Transportation Disadvantage Program

Period Ending - January 2022

Revenue

Expenditure



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

MARCH 09, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM #6d 
 

 

 

Agenda Item: Transit Service Provider for North East Polk County 

Contract Modification(s). 
    
 

Presenter: Kelly Bennington, CFO 
 

Recommended      Recommend the Board approve an increase to the annual 

Action:              contracted Not to Exceed amount and 2023 service rates. 

 

Anticipated Federal and State Operating Grants for Polk County, in 

Funding Source:  accordance with the existing Interlocal Agreement. 

 

Summary:           Transitions Commute Solution, LLC was awarded the 

North East Polk County Transit Service Provider Contract, 

# 19-016, on August 15, 2019.  The fixed fee contract 

was the result of a competitive solicitation, awarded with 

a 3-year base term, two 1-year options and a Not to Exceed 

amount of $1,212,460 annually. 

 

 In Fiscal Year 2020 contract expenditures averaged 

$88,754 monthly, totaling $1,065,043 for the year. In 

2021, the District increased its route frequency, bringing 

the average monthly expenditure to $129,545 or    

$1,554,524 for the year; within our Interlocal Agreement 

with Polk County but exceeding the annual Contracted 

Not to Exceed Amount by over $340,000.   

 

 For Fiscal Year 2022, the District anticipates an estimated 

$1,600,000 in expenditures. Additionally, acknowledging 

an incumbent requested rate increase, as allowable under 

the contract and with acceptance of renewal term 1 of 2. 

The rate increase would bring the total annual Not to 

Exceed amount to roughly $1,696,000. This amount is in 

the Polk County’s $1,750,000 budget. It is for this reason 

the District seeks to modify the annual contracted Not to 



AGENDA ITEM #6d – CONT. 

Exceed amount, to match that of the $1,750,000 allocated 

budget.   

  

 The requested increase was thoroughly vetted and 

presented to our most stringent grantor (the FDOT) for 

concurrence.  
  

 

Attachments:        Contract Modification #4 

 Findings and Determinations for requested rate increase 

 



 

 
Page 1 of 1 

 

Bilateral Contract Modification 

1. CONTRACT No. 19-016 2. MODIFICATION No.  4 3. ISSUED:  2/11/2022 

4. CONTRACT:  Transit Service Provider 5. CONTRACTOR Transitions Commute Solutions. 

6. ISSUED BY:  Lisa Harris, Contracts Specialist  
Direct Dial:  (863) 327-1314   Email: LHarris@ridecitrus.com 

7. NUMBER OF PAGES:  1 

8. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT: 
The contract identified in Block 1, is hereby modified as described below.  Except as provided herein, all other provisions of the 
contract, as hereto amended, shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect. 

9. Amount of Modification and or Change Order An Estimated increase of $537,540 for the current contract term 

10. AGREEMENT TO MODIFICATION, CHANGEORDER, OR ACKNOWLEDEMET:   

As to the Contractor: 
  

As to the District:   

 /     /   /     / 
Signature Date: 

 
Signature: Date: 

Jeff Beccaris, CFO on behalf of 
 Justin Rison, President and GM  Tom Phillips                           Executive Director 
Print Name Title: 

 
Print Name Title: 

  

This document contains mutually accepted modifications, confirmations, and/or acknowledgments to the Transit Service Provider 
Terms and Pricing under LAMTD Contract No 19-016. 

 
11. DESCRIPTION OF MODIFICATION:  
 

Contract 19-016, Section 7, Paragraph (b) – Maximum Contract Amount:  
1) Replace the referenced Not to Exceed amount of $1,212,460 with the amount of $1,750,000 

 
 

 
[END] 

 
 









LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: MARCH 9, 2022  

AGENDA ITEM #6e 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) 2022 

State Corridor Projects Public Transportation Grant 

Agreement (PTGA) for the District and Resolution 

#22-08  

 

Presenter: Kelly Bennington, CFO  

 

Recommended 

Action: Recommend Approval to accept additional funding under 

the Florida Department of Transportation (FDOT) Public 

Transportation Grant Agreement (PTGA) (FM#414063-

1-84-08), and associated Resolution #22-08 for the 

District. 

 

Summary: FDOT has allocated funding in the amount of $409,600 

with $409,600 in local funds for a total of $ 819,200 in 

Fiscal Year 2022. This funding will allow the District to 

continue providing travel options and reducing traffic 

congestion in the S.R. 37 (South Florida Avenue) 

Corridor.  

 

 

Attachments: Resolution #22-08 

  

  

 

 



  

 

 

 

 

    

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION # 22-08 
 

 

A RESOLUTION of the Lakeland Area Mass Transit District authorizing the 

signing and submission of a grant application and supporting documents and assurances to 

the Florida Department of Transportation, and the acceptance of a grant award from the 

Department. 

 

 WHEREAS, Lakeland Area Mass Transit District has the authority to apply 

for and accept grant awards made by the Florida Department of Transportation as 

authorized by Chapter 341, Florida Statutes and/or by the Federal Transit Administration 

Act of 1964, as amended; 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE Lakeland Area 

Mass Transit District: 

 

1. That the PTGA for item-Segment-Phase-Sequence 414063-1-84-08. Transit 

Corridor Development Program 

2. The submission of a grant application(s), supporting documents, and/or 

assurances to the Florida Department of Transportation is approved. 

3. Tom Phillips, Executive Director is authorized to sign the application, accept a 

grant award, and enter into, modify or terminate any subsequent award contract 

or agreement related to this grant application unless specifically rescinded. 

 

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS March 9, 2022  

 

 

    By: _______________________________ 

     (Signature) 

 

    Sara Roberts-McCarley, Board Chair 

    Lakeland Area Mass Transit District 

ATTEST: 
 

 

____________________________ (seal) 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

March 09, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM 6f 
 

 

 

Agenda Item: Asset Disposal 
 

Presenter: Kelly Bennington, CFO  
 

Policy Analysis: TA 4 Increase ridership by combining prioritized and 

necessary elements to enhance the customer experience. 

 

Recommended       

Action:              Recommend Board approve the disposal of one (1) service 

vehicle that has surpassed its useful life in years of service 

and mileage, generating costly repairs or limited usage. 

 

Summary:           The District is proposing the disposal of these items based 

on the depreciation schedule as defined by the Federal 

Transit Administration Circular 5010.1E. 

  

 The vehicles shall be disposed of through a competitive 

bid process. Item that cannot be sold will be reassessed and 

disposed of as scrap, in accordance with the District’s 

Asset Disposal Policies. 

 

Asset Disposal Chart    

Description 
In Service 

Date  Original Cost   
Expected/Actual 

Proceeds 
FTA/CUTR/TRIPS 

Useful Life 

Current Status or 
Reason for 

Disposal 
Current 

Condition 

Support(Ops) Van #205 
2010 Dodge BraunAbility 
LAMTD Vehicle 

05/27/2011 $40,688.00 
Between Market 
Value & Scrap 

4 years or 
100,000 miles 

Over 10 years and 
158,948 miles  

Vehicle requires 
a high level of 
maintenance 
and has 
exceeded the 
useful life 

  



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: MAR 9, 2022  

AGENDA ITEM 7a 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Agency Updates 

 

Presenter: Tom Phillips 

 

Recommended  

Action: Informational 

 

Summary: Items and information from the Executive Director 

 

  

 

 



LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: FEB 9, 2022  

AGENDA ITEM 8a 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: February calendar 

 

Presenter: Tom Phillips 

 

Recommended  

Action: Informational 

 

Summary: Review and summary of events taken place in February.  

 

 

  

 

 





LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: MARCH 9, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM #8b 

 

Agenda Item: Ridership Report 

 

Presenter: Tom Phillips, ED 

 

Recommended  

Action: Information only 

 

 

 

Summary: Year to date ridership information for the entire system 

including LAMTD, Winter Haven, Rural and Demand 

Response through January 31, 2021 

  

 

 

Attachments: Ridership Report. 

  

 

 













LAKELAND AREA MASS TRANSIT DISTRICT 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Date: MAR 9, 2022 

AGENDA ITEM #9 
 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Item: Other Business 

 

Presenter: TBD 

 

Recommended  

Action: TBD 

 

Summary: TBD 

  

 

 


	Agenda
	1a- Approval of LAMTD Minutes
	1a-Board Minutes Feb 9, 2022
	2 - Public Comments
	3- Employee Recognition
	4- Progress update for TDP
	5- Audit presentation
	6a- LAMTD Agenda ITEM FS  - Jan 2022
	6a- Financial Report Jan 2022
	6a- Jan 2022 Financials LAMTD
	6b- PCTS  Agenda ITEM  - Jan 2022
	6b- PCTS  Agenda ITEM  -Summary Jan 2022
	6b- PCTS January 2022 Financials
	6c- LAMTD Agenda ITEM  - Jan 2022
	6c- LAMTD Agenda ITEM  - Summary-Jan 2022
	6c- TD Financials January 2022
	6d- BOD Agenda ITEM -  Mod 4 - final
	6d- Contract Mod - 4
	Contract 19-016, Section 7, Paragraph (b) – Maximum Contract Amount: 

	6d- Rate Increase F&D (revised)
	6e- Agenda Item
	6e- RESOLUTION Corridor 2022
	6f- BOD Agenda Item 03092022
	7a - BOD Agenda Item Agency Updates
	8a - BOD Agenda Item Feb calendar
	8a- Feb Calendar
	8b- Agenda Item 3-9-21
	8b- Ridership Report March
	9- BOD Agenda Item Other business



